
DURHAM PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Durham Town Offices, 6:30 p.m. 
February 7, 2024 

NOTE: No public comment will be taken on individual applications at the meeting 
unless the Board schedules a formal public hearing with required notice posted.  
Comments on applications can be submitted in writing to the Town Planner and will be 
forwarded to the Planning Board and the applicants. 

1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum

2. Amendments to the Agenda

3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (January 3, 2023)

4. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items:
a) Town Officials
b) Residents (Public comment will be taken)
c) Non-Residents (Public comment will be taken)

5. Continuing Business:
a) Completeness Review of Site Plan Review Application for Expansion of the Leisure

Campground for 40 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not be taken)
b) Substantive Review of Site Plan Review Application for Expansion of the Leisure

Campground for 40 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not be taken)

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 1



3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (January 3, 2024) 
  

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 2



 
1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum 
 

In attendance:  John Talbot (Chair), Juliet Caplinger (Vice Chair), Allan Purinton, Tyler 
Hutchison, Brian Lanoie, and George Thebarge (Town Planner). 
 
Guest(s): Alan Plummer (Code Enforcement Officer), Jess Costa (Chair, Conservation 
Commission) and Michael Friendly (Conservation Commission Member). 
 
Absent: Anne Torregrossa 

 
2. Annual Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman 

 
Allan Purinton moved to nominate John Talbot as Chairperson. Brian Lanoie seconded the motion.  
John Talbot abstained; vote carried 4 – 0 – 1 abstention. 
 
John Talbot moved to nominate Juliet Caplinger as Vice Chairperson. Allan Purinton seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 

3. Amendments to the Agenda 
 

4. Acceptance of the Minutes of prior meeting (December 6, 2023) 
 
Allan Purinton moved to accept the December 6th, 2023 meeting minutes, Juliet Caplinger 
seconded, motion carried 5 – 0.   

 
5. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items: 

 
a.) Town Officials: 

 
George Thebarge  

 Code Enforcement Officer’s report for the end of the year indicated there were 20 
new single-family housing starts in the 2023 calendar year. 

 Met with the Town Manager, Code Officer, John Talbot and the consultant proposing 
the digital codification of the Land Use Ordinance and all the ordinances of the 
Town. This will create a digital code parallel to the tax maps that we digitized a 
couple of years ago.  

 Language Scrub and Legal Scrub – the digital codification will help to flag 
everything that is not consistent with state law, scrubbing the language, showing 
simple wording changes to get consistency. 

 
 
 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 3



b.) Residents  
 

 Nate Ledger – Expressed dissatisfaction that the Planning Board had not given him 
full opportunity to speak and ask questions at the Public Informational Meeting on 
housing policy in November 2023. 

 
c.) Non-residents – None 

 
6. New Business: No new or continuing applications 
 
7. Other Business: 

 
a.) Board Review of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments for Housing Diversity & 

Density (Public comment will not be taken) 
 

 On November 15, the Planning Board conducted a public information meeting on the 
draft housing density amendments. 

 On December 6, the Planning Board voted to proceed with the proposed draft of 
amendments to implement recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan for housing 
diversity and comply with State requirements for housing density. 

 Based on public input, the Board approved a change to clarify the density provisions 
as they apply to nonconforming lots.  

 The draft warrant article for Part 1 of the Land Use Ordinance amendments were 
included in the packet along with the final draft of amendments.  

 Board members reviewed the drafts for accuracy and the wording of summaries and 
explanations to ensure objectivity.  

 No further action on the draft amendments was taken. 
 

b.) Board Review & Discussion of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments for Solar 
Energy Systems (Public comment will not be taken) 

 
 In June of 2023, the Planning Board delegated to the Conservation Commission the 

task of preparing amendments to address solar energy systems.  

 On December 7, the Conservation Commission conducted a public information 
meeting on the draft solar energy systems amendments.   

 On December 20, the Commission voted to proceed with the proposed draft 
amendments to add provisions to classify solar energy systems, adopt submission 
requirements, and establish performance standards to address potential impacts.  

 Based on public input, the Commission voted to change the threshold for “medium 
scale” systems from 2000 sq. ft. of surface area to 8000 sq. ft.  

 Large-scale systems (> 20,000 sq. ft./half-acre) go through both conditional use 
review and site plan review, while medium-scale (8000 sq. ft. to 20,000 sq. ft.) 
projects only need site plan approval.  

 Small-scale systems (<8000 sq. ft.) are intended to serve individual homes, 
subdivisions, and businesses and will be reviewed by the Code Officer for 
compliance with building and electrical codes. 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 4



 Medium-scale systems are intended for connection and generation for the electrical 
grid and will be reviewed by the Planning Board for safety, visual impacts, and 
decommissioning plans. 

 Large-scale systems are also intended for commercial generation of electricity and 
will have an additional conditional use review to determine if the proposed size and 
intensity of the project is compatible with surrounding uses. 

    
Jess Costa and Michael Friendly - Conservation Commission 

 The process of developing the draft ordinance was approximately six (6) months, 
where we did some initial research and reviewed other ordinances from other towns 
in Maine. 

 Reviewed the Maine Audubon Guidance for the best practices for Solar 
Development. 

 Met with representatives from the Topsham Conservation Commission and the 
Topsham Energy Commission to learn about their experience developing the 
Topsham Solar Ordinance. 

 The Commission discussed other issues that they decided to table until the following 
year: 

  
o Mitigation fee - based on, if large solar arrays are put on land that has 

conservation issues. 
o Encourage solar arrays not to be put on prime farmland. 

 

 The Planning Board reviewed and discussed the draft ordinance for solar energy and 
made some updates to the draft. 

 
John Talbot moved to change the definition of solar energy system surface area to be 
the total surface area of all solar energy panels. Allan Purinton seconded for discussion. 
Motion carried 4 – 1. 
 
John Talbot moved that paragraph 11 will say, all noise generating equipment must be 
at least 400 feet from any residence within a 400-foot radius indicator from the noise 
generating equipment shown on the site plan. Juliet Caplinger seconded. Motion carried 
5 – 0. 
 
Tyler Hutchison moved to change the definition of solar energy system roof mounted or 
building integrated to remove “toward the south at an optimal angle” from the first 
sentence. Allan Purinton seconded. Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 
Juliet Caplinger moved to change C1 to say all solar equipment shall be placed at least 
100 feet from any property line. Tyler Hutchison seconded. Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 
John Talbot moved to add under line 44 of land uses in Column RRA add an ampersand 
and site plan review (SPR) and on the table define SPR means Planning Board Site Plan 
Review. Tyler Hutchison seconded. Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 5



John Talbot moved to recommend to the Select Board to approve the solar draft 
amendment as presented with the Planning Board changes for consideration at the April 
Town Meeting. Tyler Hutchison seconded. Motion carried 5 – 0. 

 
c.) Board Review & Discussion of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments for 

Codification of New Fees (Public comment will be taken) 

 In April of 2022, voters approved delegation of authority for setting fee to the Select 
Board.  

 The Town Attorney has advised that enactment of new fees must still be approved by 
the Town Meeting before the Select Board can set the fee for that service.  

 The draft amendments will list all fees in Article 18 for which fees can be collected 
and add the following new fees to those previously approved by the voters at Town 
Meeting:  
 

o Occupancy permits  
o After the fact permits 
o Subdivision sketch plan  
o Amended subdivision  
o Shoreland zoning permits  
o Solar energy systems  
o Entrance/driveway permits 
o E-911 addressing permits 

  

 The Board discussed whether the fees should be contained in a single list in Article 
18 or scattered throughout the Ordinance in the applicable individual articles and 
sections. 

 
  Allan Purinton moved that the Planning Board accept 18.4 permit application submission 

requirements as presented. Juliet Caplinger seconded. Motion carried 5 – 0. 

8.   Adjourn 

Tyler Hutchison moved to adjourn the meeting. Brian Lanoie seconded, motion carried 5 – 0. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:49 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 6



6. Continuing Business: 
a) Completeness Review of Site Plan Review Application for Expansion of the 

Leisure Campground for 40 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not 
be taken) 

 

•  On December 6, 2023, the Planning Board determined that the application was 
incomplete and sent a letter dated December 12 identifying thirteen 
deficiencies in meeting the submission requirements for site plan review: 
a. Section 8.5.C – 10 copies of full‐sized site plan (Submit copies or request a waiver) 

The applicant has submitted full-sized copies of an “Existing Conditions Plan” dated 
8-15-2023 revised 12-28-2023 by Main-Land Development Consultants, Inc. of 
Livermore Falls.  Note 16 of the existing conditions plan states that “The purpose of 
this plan is to show a partial existing conditions survey and campground expansion 
concept of Durham Leisure Campground. No Ordinance review, engineering design, 
or permitting was completed by Main-Land.” 

b. Section 8.5.C.6 – Copy of septic system test pit logs (Submit logs by qualified 
professional) 

The applicant has resubmitted preliminary soil evaluation test pit logs dated 6-21-
2023 prepared by Licensed Site Evaluator Bonnie Stewart-Cobb that were provided 
for conditional use review. 

c. Section 8.5.C.11 – Indication of zoning district (Add to the plan) 

The applicant has stated that the zoning district has been added as a note (#13) on 
the site plan. 
 
d. Section 8.5.C.12 – Drainage ways and culverts (Submit stormwater plan or a waiver 
request) 
 
The applicant has requested a waiver of the requirement for a stormwater plan and 
stated he will put culverts where they are needed during construction. 
 
e. Section 8.5.C.14 – Main traffic entrance sight distances (Provide qualified 
professional’s measurements on the plan) 

 
The applicant has stated that “It’s on print out…” The applicant submitted a graphic 
diagram titled “DURHAM LEISURE CAMPGROUND” dated 12-12-2023 with a note at 
the bottom that reads as follows: “The Maine Department of Transportation 
provides this publication for information only. Reliance upon this information is at 
user risk. It is subject to revision and may be incomplete depending on changing 
conditions. The Department assumes no liability if injuries or damages result from 
this information. This map does not support emergency dispatch.”  There is no 
indication on the diagram indicating the project location, entrance location, or 
available sight distances along Route 136 at the project entrance. The applicant has 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 7



not submitted measurements by a qualified professional (surveyor or engineer) to 
verify that the project entrance has safe sight distances on Route 136 for the 50 
mph posted speed limit. 
 
f. Section 8.5.C.16 – Waste disposal types & facilities (Submit qualified professional’s 
HHE200 & system design) 

 
The applicant is requesting a waiver of the requirement to submit engineering 
plans for the semi-public wastewater treatment system that will serve 40 RV sites. 
He has submitted an engineering proposal for design and permitting of a new 
leachfield with a capacity of 5000 gallons per day by Main-Land Camp Solutions, 
Engineers, Surveyors, Scientists of Livermore Falls dated December 21, 2023.  
 
The proposal states that the consultant will “conduct machine-excavated test pits in 
the concept leachfield areas to characterize subsurface conditions and gather 
representative soil samples for laboratory testing.” The unsigned engineering 
services proposal further agrees to “provide an engineered system design for 
serving the proposed 40 new sites per current subsurface wastewater rules.” No 
qualified professional’s HHE 200 or system design have been submitted by the 
applicant.  
 
The Board should also note that the project goals on Page 2 of the proposal 
indicate that the wastewater system will be designed per the applicant’s plan to 
“expand the existing campground by 40 ‘model trailer’ sites which will have 
sanitary septic service for each site.” The Board should clarify whether the project is 
being designed for seasonal occupancy by RVs or year-round occupancy by “park 
model trailers,” or both. 
 
g. Section 8.5.C.18 – Proposed landscaping & buffering (Request a waiver) 

 
The applicant is proposing that the existing treed condition of the campground will 
provide adequate landscaping and buffering. 
 
h. Section 8.5.C.20 – Locations & details of signage (Provide detailed signage plan) 

 
The applicant stated that “locations of signage and speed signs on print out. Details 
are on legend.” The Existing Conditions Plan (Sheet S2.1) shows a stop sign at the 
project entrance on Route 136 and 3 internal stop signs at internal intersections.  
That plan also shows four 5mph speed limit signs on the internal driveway system. 
The applicant has submitted an updated campsite numbering diagram showing Site 
66 next to Site 8, which is across the road from Site 16.  The Planning Board should 
ask for comments from the Fire Chief as to the need for a logical numbering and 
campsite signage sequence to locate sites quickly in emergencies. 
 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 8



i. Section 8.5.C.21 – Location & type of area lighting (Request a waiver) 
 

The applicant stated that the “location of lighting is on the print out.” The legend 
on the Existing Conditions Plan contains symbols for utility poles and overhead and 
underground electrical lines.  There are no symbols for light fixtures and none 
could be located on the plan.  A single label at the campground parking area 
identifies a “light pole.” No specifications for any light fixtures with illumination 
levels have been provided.  The applicant stated that “We run a dark sky 
campground. All kids are on site after dark. From mid-July to mid-September, we 
try to have minimal lighting for dark sky to deter brown tail mouths from coming to 
the area.” The applicant submitted information sheets about brown tail moth 
mitigation measures. The standards for lighting in commercial projects are found in 
Section 8.6.G. 
 
j. Section 8.5.C.26 – Letter from MIF&W on wildlife habitat review (Provide letter from 
State agency) 
 
The applicant submitted a letter dated January 16, 2024 from John Perry of the 
Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife stating that his department has 
not mapped any Essential Habitats that would be directly affected by the project. 
 
k. Section 8.5.C.27 – Letter from MHPC on historic & archaeological resources review 
(Provide letter from State agency) 
 
The applicant submitted a copy of an email received by State Historic Preservation 
Officer Kirk Mahoney receipt dated 12/28/23 informing the State Commission of 
the proposed campground expansion. The applicant also submitted an email from 
Maine Historic Preservation Commission Review & Compliance Coordinator Megan 
Rideout indicating that the applicant will be notified by postal mail the results of 
the Commission’s review along with what appears to be a cut sheet with 
submission requirements for State historic preservation reviews. 
 
Section 8.5.C.28 – Erosion & sedimentation plan (Submit plan by qualified professional or 
request a waiver with calculations per the Ordinance) 
 
The applicant is requesting a waiver from the requirements for erosion and 
sedimentation controls.  The applicant stated that the project is not in the 
Runaround Pond watershed.  He further stated that he is not changing drainage 
patterns or installing pervious surfaces. 
 
m. Section 8.5.C.29 – Stormwater plan (Submit plan by qualified professional or request 
a waiver with calculations per the Ordinance) 
 
The applicant is requesting a waiver of the requirements for a stormwater 
management plan on the same grounds. 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 9



 
• The applicant has submitted a request for waiver asking the Planning Board to 

waive the submission requirements for Sections 8.5.C.12 (drainageways), 16 
(waste facilities), 26 (MIF&W letter), 28 (erosion & sedimentation controls), 
and 29 (stormwater plan). 

• The waiver form contains the criteria the Board must consider in granting 
waivers with sample motions for Board determinations of whether the 
applicant has met the burden of satisfying the criteria for granting a waiver. 

• Based on the conceptual campground expansion plan submitted by the 
applicant, the expanded road network serving the campground will develop a 
ground area of approximately 32,000 square feet. The applicant has stated that 
each campsite will develop 1000 square feet per site, which adds another 
40,000 square feet of development, for a total of approximately 72,000 square 
feet, or 1.65 acres. 

• According to the Maine DEP website, Maine’s Stormwater Management Law 
lists stormwater standards for projects that propose more than one acre of 
disturbed area.  The website states that “disturbed area generally includes 
areas that are stripped, graded, excavated, or filled during construction.” 
Development of 40 RV/camp model trailer sites and the road network serving 
them would clearly meet the definition of disturbed areas. 

• Before making its decision on whether to grant the applicant’s requested 
waivers, the Planning Board may want to consider seeking a peer review 
opinion at the applicant’s expense from Gorrill Palmer Associates as to whether 
this project is subject to State stormwater management and erosion control 
rules (Durham uses those same standards for subdivision & site plan review). 

• The Board may want to further ask the Town’s consulting engineer whether the 
proposal to construct the infrastructure serving a 40-site RV/model trailer park 
expansion, including a semi-public water and sewer system, electrical grid, and 
road network should require an engineered site plan for review and approval 
by the Planning Board. 

• The Board could also request that Gorrill Palmer utilize the peer review escrow 
fund to cover the cost of determining the safe-stopping sight distances at the 
project entrance on Route 136. 

• The packet contains a draft updated incomplete letter for review and 
processing by the Planning Board along with a draft complete letter (if the 
Board grants the requested waivers). 

  

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 10



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 11



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 12



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 13



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 14



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 15



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 16



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 17



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 18



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 19



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 20



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 21



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 22



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 23



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 24



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 25



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 26



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 27



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 28



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 29



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 30



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 31



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 32



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 33



PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 34



 

 

TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine  04222 
 
Office of Code Enforcement               Tel. (207) 353-2561 
and Planning     Fax: (207) 353-5367 

 
  
 

NOTICE OF INCOMPLETE APPLICATION 
 
Date:  February 7, 2024 
Name:   Ken Huot 
Address:  24 Leisure Lane. Durham, Maine 04222 
 
Mr. Huot: 

The Planning Board of the Town of Durham has reviewed your application for site review of a 
project on Leisure Lane (Map 2, Lot 13).  In accordance with Section 8.4.H., the Board has determined 
that your application is incomplete, and the Board cannot begin a formal review of your application until 
all information stated in the application checklist is submitted. 

For your application to be considered complete and adequate for review by the Planning Board, the 
following materials must be submitted: 

a. Section 8.5.C – 10 copies of full‐sized site plan (Submit copies or request waiver) 
b. Section 8.5.C.12 – Drainage ways and culverts (Submit stormwater plan or request waiver) 
c. Section 8.5.C.14 – Main traffic entrance sight distances (Provide qualified professional’s 

measurements on the plan) 
d. Section 8.5.C.16 – Waste disposal types & facilities (Submit qualified professional’s HHE200 & 

system design) 
e. Section 8.5.C.21 – Location & type of area lighting (Request waiver) 
f. Section 8.5.C.27 – Letter from MHPC on historic & archaeological resources review (Provide 

letter from State agency) 
g. Section 8.5.C.28 – Erosion & sedimentation plan (Submit plan by qualified professional or 

request waiver with calculations per the Ordinance) 
h. Section 8.5.C.29 – Stormwater plan (Submit plan by qualified professional or request waiver 

with calculations per the Ordinance) 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
George Thebarge, Town Planner 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 35



 

 

TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine  04222 
 
Office of Code Enforcement               Tel. (207) 353-2561 
and Planning     Fax: (207) 353-5367 

 
  
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  February 7, 2024 
Name:   Ken Huot 
Address:  24 Leisure Lane. Durham, Maine 04222 
 
 
 
Mr. Huot: 

The Planning Board of the Town of Durham has reviewed your application for site review of a 
project on Leisure Lane (Map 2, Lot 13).  In accordance with Section 8.4.H., the Board has determined 
that your application is complete, and the Board will begin a substantive review of the application 
against the site plan review criteria and standards of Article 8. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
George Thebarge, Town Planner 

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 36



6. Continuing Business:
b) Substantive Review of Site Plan Review Application for Expansion of the 

Leisure Campground for 40 RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not 
be taken)

• If the Board grants the requested waivers and/or determines that the applicant 
has submitted a completed application sufficient for the Board to render a 
decision, the packet contains a site plan review checklist addressing compliance 
of the application with the site plan review standards.

• The checklist was filled out by the Town Planner based on the current state of 
the applicant’s submissions.

• If the Board grants any waivers of submissions or performance standards, those 
waivers will be noted on the checklist form.

• If the Board votes to proceed with a vote in favor of site plan approval based on 
the Ordinance criteria and standards, the Town Planner will prepare draft 
findings of fact documenting the Board’s review of the applicant’s submissions.

• If the Board votes to proceed with a vote of denial of  site plan approval due to 
insufficient submissions and/or failure to meet the site plan review design 
standards, the Town Planner will prepare draft findings of fact for all points 
where the applicant has failed to meet Ordinance requirements as determined 
by majority vote of the Planning Board.

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 37



TTOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine  04222 

Office of Code Enforcement   Tel. (207) 376-6558 
and Planning   Fax: (207) 353-5367 

SITE PLAN REVIEW CHECKLIST 
SECTION 8.5 SITE PLAN REVIEW SUBMISSIONS SECTION 8.6 – 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

PROJECT NAME _______________________ DATE ____________ 

This checklist has been prepared to assist applicants in developing their applications. It should be 
used as a guide. The checklist does not substitute for the site plan review criteria or the 
requirements of Article 8 of the Land Use Ordinance. The Planning Board also will be using the 
checklist to make sure that your application is complete and meets all standards. Fill out all 
shaded columns in the checklist by initialing a box in each row.   Indicate if the information 
has been submitted or if a waiver is requested.  The application need not contain separate plans 
as implied below. The perimeter survey, site plan and general engineering plans may be 
contained on the same drawing for site plan approval. However, detailed engineering drawings 
such as grading plans, utility plans, stormwater plans, and erosion/sedimentation plans should be 
presented on separate sheets.  

 SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Received 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.4 D. Required public notice sent to abutting property owners 

8.5 SITE PLAN REVIEW SUBMISSIONS REQUIRED FOR COMPLETENESS REVIEW 
(10 Copies of application form & all materials) 

A. Completed application form
NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

B. Location map w/ required
information NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C. Site plan at readable scale
(1”=100’ maximum) NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.1 Proposed project name, 
Town, & Map & Lot #s NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.2 Names of owner, applicant, 
plan preparer & abutters NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE 

Leisure (STAFF REVIEW)) Feb 2 2024

YES

YES

NO

YES

YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 38



Site Plan Review Checklist – Project Name ____ __________________ 

Planning Board August 2020            Page 2 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Received 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

C.3 Documentation of legal 
rights to develop property NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.4 Standard boundary survey 
NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE 

C.5 Copy of most recent deed 
w/ any encumbrances NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.6 All septic system test pit 
logs 

C.7 Proposed water supplies for 
domestic & firefighting 
purposes 

C.8 All wetlands mapped 

C.9 Location of any water 
features & indication of 
location in or out of 
Runaround Pond 
watershed 

C.10 Topography at 5 ft. & 2 ft. 
contours (for areas where 
construction will occur) 

C.11 Zoning district and any 
district boundaries NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.12 Location (w/ size) of 
existing & proposed 
culverts & drainage ways 
shown 

C.13 Existing streets, 
easements, buildings, 
parks, & deeded open 
spaces (on or adjacent) 

C.14 Traffic entrance(s) sight 
distances external & 
internal roads 

C.15 Location & width of existing 
& proposed access drives 

C.16 Proposed waste disposal 
types & facilities 

C.17 Proposed driveways, 
parking & loading areas, 
walkways, & circulation 

C.18 Proposed landscaping & 
buffering 

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

YES

YES

YES

NO

YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 39



Planning Board August 2020            Page 3 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form)

Approved 
by 
Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted

C.19 Location, dimensions, 
ground floor elevation of all 
buildings & expansions 

NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

C.20 Location and details of all 
signage 

C.21 Location & type of exterior 
lighting 

C.22 Location of all utilities, 
including fire protection 
systems 

C.23 General description of 
proposed use or activity 

C.24 Signature block for 
Planning Board Chair 

C.25 Flood mapping if in FEMA 
flood area 

C.26 Wildlife habitat identified 
per MIF&W mapped or 
confirmed absent 

C.27 Historic & archaeological 
resources identified per 
MHPC or confirmed absent 

C.28 Erosion & Sediment Plan 

C.29 Stormwater Plan 

C.30 Phosphorus Plan (if in 
watershed of Runaround 
Pond) 

D. ADDITIONAL STUDIES THAT MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BOARD
(Based on project type & size, site issues, or issues that come up during review)

D.1 High intensity soil survey 

D.2 Hydrogeological 
assessment for 
groundwater withdrawal 

D.3 Traffic trip generation 
(required for larger projects) 

D.4 Traffic impact study 
(required for larger projects 
or if safety issues are 
identified) 

E. Additional information 
required by Planning Board 
to verify compliance with 
standards (requires vote of 
the Board) 

N/A

YES

NO

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

N/A

NO

NO

YES

YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 40



Planning Board August 2020            Page 4 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Approved 
by 
Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.6 REVIEW STANDARDS TO BE ADDRESSED BY THE APPLICANT’S SUBMISSIONS AFTER 
THE APPLICATION IS DEEMED COMPLETE BY THE PLANNING BOARD 

8.6.A Utilization of the Site 

Plan reflects natural 
capabilities of site to 
support the development 
Buildings & parking located 
on suitable land 

Environmentally sensitive 
portions of site avoided & 
protected 
Natural drainage 
maintained to maximum 
extent practical 

8.6.B Adequacy of Road System 

Access road(s) have 
capacity to take the added 
traffic proposed 
Traffic analysis for projects 
with more than 100 peak 
hour trips 

8.6.C Vehicular Access into the Site 
C.1 Meets entrance sight 

distances per Appendix 1, 
Section 1.4 

C.2 Access onto road(s) within 
steepness limits (3% for 
two car lengths) 

C.3 Access off secondary road 
if more than one frontage 

C.4 Off-site traffic 
improvements required per 
traffic study 

C.5 Entrance designed to avoid 
queuing in lanes of road 
giving access to the site 

C.6.a Only 1 driveway entrance if 
less than 100 daily trips & 
less than 30 feet wide 

C.6.b No more than 2 entrances if 
100 daily trips or more 

C.6.c Entrance(s) at least 50 ft 
from any intersection 

C.6.d Entrances at least 75 ft 
apart 

YES

YES

YES

UNKNOWN

YES

N/A

UNKOWN

YES

N/A

N/A

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 41



Planning Board August 2020            Page 5 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Approved 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.6.D Internal Vehicular Circulation 

D.1 Site plan minimizes cut & fill 
alterations and provides 
adequate room for safe 
operations 

D.2 If large delivery vehicles will 
need access, entrance & 
circulation designed for 
WB-40 vehicles 

D.3 Fire lanes around 
building(s) adequate & 
clearly marked 

8.6.E Parking Layout and Design 

E.1 No backing into road for 
parking required 

E.2 Parking set back from side 
& rear property lines by 15 
ft. unless buffering requires 
more distance 

E.2 Parking set back from front 
property line by 25 ft. 
unless buffering requires 
more distance 

E.3 Parking spaces and access 
aisles meet dimensional 
requirements 

E.4 Signs adequate for one-
way circulation if proposed 

E.5 No double stacking of 
parking spaces 

E.6 Vehicles prevented from 
overhanging walks & drives 
or damaging landscaping & 
lighting 

E.7 Safe pedestrian circulation 
from buildings to parking 

8.6.F Utilities 

Adequate utilities provided 
and underground or 
adequately screened 

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

UNKNOWN YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 42



Planning Board August 2020            Page 6 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Approved 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.6.G Lighting Design Standards – Lighting plan submitted showing: 

G.1 Max. height of light poles 
25 ft. or height of building, 
whichever is less 

G.2 Max. apex of illumination 
from fixtures upward is 150 
degrees max. 

G.3 No building spotlights used 
for illumination 

G.4 Light poles protected from 
vehicular damage 

G.5 Building & light pole fixtures 
shielded to avoid nuisance 
glare & no string lights 

G.6.a Parking lot average 
illumination level of 1.5 fc 

G.6.b Intersection illumination 
level of 3 fc 

G.6.c Max. illumination at 
property lines of 1 fc 

G.7.a Auto service station fueling 
canopies have less than 20 
fc average & 30 fc 
maximum with 1.25 
uniformity ratio (max to min) 

G.7.b Fueling canopies light 
fixtures recessed or flush 
with max upward apex of 
illumination of 85 degrees 

G.7.c No light fixtures on fueling 
canopy except to illuminate 
approved signs 

8.6.H Signage 

All signs meet the 
requirements of Section 
5.24 

NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

8.6.I Fire Protection 

The water supply will 
sustain fire suppression 
requirements of NFPA 
1142, Water Supplies for 
Suburban & Rural Fire 
Fighting 

UNKNOWN NO

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

N/A

N/A

N/A

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

YES

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 43



Planning Board August 2020            Page 7 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Approved 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.6.J General Buffering Standards – Landscaping Plan showing the following: 
J.1 Evergreen buffers consist 

of 6-8 ft trees planted in 
alternate pattern 5 ft apart 

J.2.a Buffers along property lines 
to shield uses from abutting 
property 

J.2.b Garbage areas, utilities, 
service equipment, and 
outdoor storage totally 
screened 

J.2.c Parking areas & other 
vehicle storage screened 
but traffic visibility at 
entrance(s) not obstructed 

J.3 Existing vegetation & 
landscape features provide 
adequate screening in lieu 
of installed buffers 

J.4 Existing and proposed 
buffers are adequate to 
shield structures & uses 
from non-compatible 
properties & public 
roadways 

J.5 Fencing & screening is 
durable and will be properly 
maintained by the owner 

J.6 Fencing & screening 
located within the property 
to allow access for 
maintenance on both sides 

J.7 Management system will be 
in place to ensure long-term 
maintenance of buffering 

8.6.K Historic & Archaeological Resources 
Applicant has confirmed 
with MHPC that no historic 
or archaeological resources 
are present or measures 
are included in the site plan 
to protect those resources. 

8.6.L Financial Capacity 
The applicant has adequate 
financial resources to 
construct improvements in 
keeping with the standards 

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

YES

NO

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 44



Planning Board August 2020            Page 8 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
REGULATIONS 

Submitted by 
Applicant 

Waiver 
Requested 
(with waiver 
request form) 

Approved 
by 

Planning 
Board 

Waiver 
Granted 

8.6.M Technical Ability 

Applicant has experience 
with site development 
and/or has retained 
qualified consultants & 
contractors to complete the 
project in keeping with the 
standards 

8.7 WAIVERS (Based on review of individual waiver requests) 

A. For submission waivers,
applicant has demonstrated
all performance standards
have been met

(Attach 
waiver 
requests) 

B.1 For waivers of performance 
standards, the applicant 
has provided sound 
engineering and/or 
environmental analysis to 
support the request  

(Attach 
waiver 
requests) 

B.2 The waivers will not have 
the effect of nullifying any 
regulation 

B.3 The site plan review criteria 
are substantially met by the 
proposed design 

B.4 Any performance standard 
waivers are noted on the 
approved site plan 

NOT WAIVABLE NOT WAIVABLE

UNKNOWN NO

PLANING BOARD PACKET FEB 7 2024 PAGE 45


	pb_agenda_packet_02-07_2024.pdf
	pb_agenda_packet_02-07_2024.pdf

	SPR Checklist Staff Review.1.pdf



